## STRATEGIC PLANNING, SUSTAINABILITY AND TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEE MEETING

Date: Tuesday 10 July 2018

Time: 6.30 pm

Venue: Town Hall, High Street, Maidstone

Membership:

Councillors D Burton (Chairman), Clark, Cox, Field, Garten, Mrs Grigg (Vice-Chairman), Munford, Parfitt-Reid and de Wiggondene-Sheppard

The Chairman will assume that all Members will read the reports before attending the meeting. Officers are asked to assume the same when introducing reports.

## **AMENDED AGENDA**

Page No.

- 1. Apologies for Absence
- 2. Notification of Substitute Members
- 3. Urgent Items
- 4. Notification of Visiting Members
- 5. Disclosures by Members and Officers
- 6. Disclosures of Lobbying
- 7. To consider whether any items should be taken in private because of the possible disclosure of exempt information
- 8. Minutes of the meeting held on 12 June 2018
- 9. Presentation of Petitions (if any)
- 10. Questions and answer session for members of the public
- 11. Committee Work Programme
- 12. Outside Bodies Verbal Updates from Members
- 13. Nominations to Outside Bodies SPS&T
- 14. Revenue Outturn 2017/18 Allocation of Underspend
- 15. Neighbourhood Planning Protocol Note

**Issued on Tuesday 3 July 2018** 

**Continued Over/:** 

Alisan Brown

MAID TONE

- 16. The Big Conversation on rural Transport in Kent consultation
- 17. Solutions to operation stack, Public information exercise update
- 18. Draft Sports Facilities and Playing Pitch Strategies
- 19. Development Management Planning Pre-Application Fees
- 20. Use of Highways Act 1980 Section 42 Powers in the Borough
- 21. Maidstone Local Plan Review: Scoping and Local Plan Review
- 22. Statement of Community Involvement Consultation Draft

### **PUBLIC SPEAKING AND ALTERNATIVE FORMATS**

If you require this information in an alternative format please contact us, call **01622 602899** or email **committee@maidstone.gov.uk**.

In order to speak at this meeting, please contact Democratic Services using the contact details above, by 5 p.m. one clear working day before the meeting, i.e. Friday 6<sup>th</sup> July. If asking a question, you will need to provide the full text in writing. If making a statement, you will need to tell us which agenda item you wish to speak on. Please note that slots will be allocated on a first come, first served basis.

1 - 28

To find out more about the work of the Committee, please visit www.maidstone.gov.uk.

## STRATEGIC PLANNING, SUSTAINABILITY AND TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEE

10 July 2018

## **Statement of Community Involvement Consultation Draft**

| Final Decision-Maker               | Strategic Planning, Sustainability and Transportation Committee                            |
|------------------------------------|--|
| Lead Head of Service/Lead Director | Rob Jarman, Head of Planning and Development   |
| Lead Officer and Report<br>Author  | Mark Egerton, Strategic Planning Manager, and<br>Sue Whiteside, Principal Planning Officer |
| Classification                     | Public   |
| Wards affected                     | All  |

## **Executive Summary**

The Council has a duty to maintain an up-to-date Statement of Community Involvement (SCI), and to review adopted SCIs at least every 5 years. The current SCI was adopted in 2013, and requires updating to reflect changes in legislation and the way in which the Council provides its planning services. In accordance with statutory provisions and best practice, the SCI sets out in detail when and how the Council will consult and/or inform statutory consultees, stakeholders and the general public in the plan making and development management processes. This report seeks approval of the draft SCI (attached at Appendix 1) for a statutory 6-week public consultation. The report also seeks delegated authority to format the draft SCI (Appendix 1) using corporate branding. Following consultation, a further report on the key issues raised by respondents, together with recommended amendments to the SCI, will be presented to this Committee.

## This report makes the following recommendations to this Committee:

That the Statement of Community Involvement Consultation Draft (attached at Appendix 1) is approved for public consultation.

| Timetable   |              |
|---|--------------|
| Meeting   | Date         |
| Strategic Planning, Sustainability and Transportation Committee | 10 July 2018 |

## **Statement of Community Involvement Consultation Draft**

#### 1. INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND

- 1.1 Local planning authorities are required to prepare a Statement of Community Involvement (SCI) under the <u>Planning and Compulsory</u>

  <u>Purchase Act 2004</u> (as amended), and to review them every five years as a minimum. The SCI must set out when and how stakeholders and the local community can:
  - Participate in the preparation of local plans<sup>1</sup>, neighbourhood development plans (also called neighbourhood plans) and supplementary planning documents; and
  - Engage in the process of decision making on planning applications.
- 1.2 The SCI is itself subject to a prescribed 6-week consultation period, and this report is seeking approval to consult statutory consultees and the wider community on the consultation methods set out in the draft document attached at Appendix 1. The draft SCI (Appendix 1) will need formatting using corporate branding, and it is proposed to undertake this task prior to public consultation.
- 1.3 The revised draft SCI reflects revisions to planning legislation that have occurred since 2013 (when the Council's previous SCI was adopted) and changes in the way in which the Council provides its planning services.
- 1.4 Planning regulations<sup>2</sup> include lists of specific and general consultation bodies, including parish councils and neighbourhood forums, to which draft plans or planning applications may be sent. The decision on which statutory consultees might be appropriate to consult is dependent on the complexity of plans and on the type of planning application submitted. In addition to statutory consultees and the general public, where relevant, it is also important to consult and/or notify hard-to-reach groups and local stakeholder groups. Examples of such groups are set out in the draft SCI.
- 1.5 The Localism Act 2011 introduced the 'duty to cooperate', whereby neighbouring authorities and other relevant organisations must work together on strategic cross-boundary planning issues that affect their areas. As part of fulfilling its legal requirements, the Council will prepare and endeavour to agree 'statements of common ground' with the County Council, neighbouring local authorities and other appropriate authorities, including those prescribed in legislation.

<sup>2</sup> The Town and Country Planning (Planning) (England) Regulations 2012 or The Neighbourhood Planning (General) Regulations 2012 for local plans or neighbourhood plans; and The Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015 or The Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Regulations 1990 for applications

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> Kent County Council is responsible for the consultation undertaken on its Minerals and Waste Local Plans, and these plans are not covered by this SCI

## The plan making process

- 1.6 Local plans are the subject of two rounds of mandatory public consultation and independent examination before they are adopted and become part of the Maidstone Development Plan<sup>3</sup>. Consultation during the early stages of evidence gathering and plan preparation is flexible although, once an Issues and Options scoping paper or an initial draft plan is available, best practice dictates the use of a voluntary 6-week consultation to invite views from the public. The extent of any further consultation on a plan that has previously been the subject of a voluntary 6-week public consultation, and the period of additional consultation, will depend on the scope of the amendments and will be at the discretion of the Council. The public has further opportunity to comment on a local plan during the latter stages of its production, through a prescribed statutory 6-week consultation period and independent examination.
- 1.7 Acknowledgements of receipt of representations made on plans will be issued but responses to the individual issues raised by respondents is not practical, due to the volume of comments received during consultations and the breadth of issues raised by the public. A summary of the key issues raised by respondents, together with recommendations, will be reported to this Committee, and the public can view and download Committee reports and decisions from the website. Representations received during the early stages of plan production (Regulation 18) help to shape and refine the local plan before the 6-week statutory consultation on the pre-submission version of the plan (Regulation 19) is undertaken. Representations made during this latter stage are given consideration by the Inspector during the examination into the plan.
- 1.8 Supplementary planning documents (SPDs) are not subject to independent examination because they can only expand on the policies and/or proposals in local plans which have already been examined. Their preparation is governed by planning regulations and informed by community involvement, including a 4-week statutory public consultation period on a draft plan. Adopted SPDs do not form part of the Maidstone Development Plan but are a material consideration in the determination of planning applications. All representations will be acknowledged, but respondents will not receive an individual response to the issues raised.
- 1.9 Parish councils and neighbourhood forums are responsible for preparing neighbourhood plans for their designated neighbourhood areas. Neighbourhood plans are subject to two rounds of mandatory public consultation in addition to an independent examination and a local referendum before being 'made' (adopted) by Maidstone Borough Council. Consultation during the early stages of neighbourhood plan production is undertaken by the parish councils or neighbourhood forums but, following submission of a neighbourhood plan to the Council, the Council is responsible for a statutory 6-week public consultation and for the arrangement of the examination. Representations submitted during the

-

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>3</sup> The Maidstone Development Plan comprises adopted local plans (including those prepared by Kent Council) and 'made' (adopted) neighbourhood plans

statutory 6-week consultation period are given consideration by the independent Examiner (the Council is a consultee). A post-examination neighbourhood plan (as modified by the Examiner) is a material consideration in the determination of planning applications and following a successful referendum, once made, a neighbourhood plan forms part of the Maidstone Development Plan.

- 1.10 Legislative changes now require local authorities to include neighbourhood plans in their SCIs, so there is inevitably some overlap with the neighbourhood planning protocol<sup>4</sup>. A report updating the protocol, to reflect recent legislative changes and to review practices and decision making arrangements, is included as part of this agenda.
- 1.11 The SCI makes clear the extent of consultation to be undertaken at each stage of the plan making process for local plans, supplementary planning documents and neighbourhood plans. For neighbourhood planning, the SCI sets out the consultation to be undertaken for the designation of neighbourhood forums and neighbourhood areas, as well as the plan production stages. Additionally, the responsibilities for each stage of neighbourhood plan production are highlighted.
- 1.12 To encourage community involvement, a range of communication methods are proposed to be used at the various stages of the plan making process. Dependent on the type of plan and its consultation stage these methods may include, but are not limited to: publicising activities through the website and in the press; use of the consultation portal for the submission of representations; sending out notifications of consultations to statutory bodies, stakeholders and everyone on the Council's consultation database; and arranging more focused exhibitions, meetings and/or workshops targeting appropriate stakeholders. The advantage of being flexible in how the Council engages with the public at various stages of plan making, rather than prescribing strict methods of consultation, is illustrated by the potential preparation of a Communications Strategy for the review of the Maidstone Borough Local Plan.
- 1.13 Ward Councillors also have an important role to play through Committee meetings where they can represent the views of their local communities and impart local or expert knowledge of their areas, and by engaging with the public during consultations.

## The development management process

1.14 Depending on the type of planning application, applications are determined by Planning Committee or the Development Management team under the Council's scheme of delegated powers. Decisions on planning applications take account of the Maidstone Development Plan and any other material planning considerations. Whereas the Council consults statutory consultees and the public on planning documents, the SCI stresses that statutory bodies are 'consulted' on planning applications whilst members of the public are 'notified'. Involvement is voluntary for members of the public, and the Council is able to take decisions on planning applications without responses

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>4</sup> Approved by Strategic Planning, Sustainability and Transportation Committee on 18 April 2016

from the public following prescribed consultation periods.

- 1.15 The SCI sets out the Council's approach to pre-application advice and consultation, including the use of planning performance agreements where appropriate. For major proposals, the Council encourages applicants to approach the local ward Councillor(s), parish council or neighbourhood forum, and the local community in advance of making a formal planning application.
- 1.16 The Council publishes a weekly list of planning applications, and details of individual planning applications are published on the website. Planning regulations require certain specified types of applications to be publicised by way of a site notice, a public notice in local newspapers and, in some cases, by notification to adjoining owners or occupiers. Parish councils and neighbourhood forums are automatically notified of planning applications within their areas. The extent of a consultation on a planning application and the range of consultees to be consulted varies according to the nature of the planning application and its location. Re-consultation or notification of amendments to planning applications is at the Council's discretion, and will depend on the nature of the amendments proposed to the application.
- 1.17 Certain development falls into permitted development rights under <a href="The Town and Country Planning">Town and Country Planning</a> (General Permitted Development) (England)
  <a href="Order 2015">Order 2015</a>. In some cases, before permitted development rights can be used, the developer must first obtain prior approval from the Council in relation to specified aspects of the development. The paragraph on permitted development rights is included in the SCI to illustrate that there are some instances when the public will not be informed of a development proposal.
- 1.18 The public can engage in the appeals process, which is managed by the Planning Inspectorate in accordance with their published <u>procedural</u> <u>guidelines</u>, but there are no provisions for third parties, including objectors, to appeal.

#### 2. AVAILABLE OPTIONS

- 2.1 Option A: The Committee could decide not to approve the revised draft SCI for public consultation, and to retain the SCI which was adopted in 2013. This option would not meet the Council's statutory duties, in particular the requirement to undertake 5-yearly reviews as a minimum, and the currently adopted SCI does not reflect changes to planning legislation and the Council's planning practices. The risks associated with not updating the SCI at this point are low, but these will increase over time as the review of the Maidstone Borough Local Plan progresses through its consultation stages to examination, when the Inspector will consider whether such consultations have been undertaken in accordance with an up-to-date SCI.
- 2.2 Option B: The Committee could decide to approve the revised draft SCI for public consultation.

#### 3. PREFERRED OPTION AND REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS

- 3.1 Option B is the preferred option. The Council will fulfil its statutory duties by updating the SCI and undertaking public consultation on a new draft document. Changes in legislation governing SCIs require local authorities to:
  - Undertake 5-yearly reviews of their SCIs;
  - Set out the Council's consultation processes for the preparation of neighbourhood plans in SCIs; and
  - Explain how the Council will support and advise parish councils and neighbourhood forums during the preparation of their plans.

Although not subject to examination, an SCI is required to undergo public consultation prior to its adoption by Council. Consequently, this report recommends that the draft SCI (Appendix 1) is approved for public consultation.

#### 4. RISK

4.1 The risks associated with this proposal, including the risks if the Council does not act as recommended, have been considered in line with the Council's Risk Management Framework. That consideration is shown in this report at paragraph 2.1. We are satisfied that the risks associated are within the Council's risk appetite and will be managed as per the Policy.

#### 5. CONSULTATION RESULTS AND PREVIOUS COMMITTEE FEEDBACK

5.1 Although the SCI is not a development plan document, and consequently it is not subject to examination, a draft version is nevertheless subject to a statutory 6-week public consultation period. If the draft SCI is approved for consultation by the Committee, public consultation is planned to commence on 29 June 2018.

## 6. NEXT STEPS: COMMUNICATION AND IMPLEMENTATION OF THE DECISION

- 6.1 If approved by the Committee, the consultation draft (Appendix 1) will be formatted, with corporate branding and appropriate graphics added to the document prior to publication of the consultation.
- 6.2 Statutory bodies, stakeholders and everyone whose details are held on the Council's consultation database will (subject to data protection requirements) be informed of the consultation. Details will be made available on the website, and a public notice advertising the event will be placed in the Kent Messenger.

6.3 The key issues arising from representations, together with an appropriately amended SCI, will be presented to this Committee with a view to recommending that the SCI is referred to Council for adoption.

## 7. CROSS-CUTTING ISSUES AND IMPLICATIONS

| Issue                          | Implications  | Sign-off  |
|--------------------------------|---|---|
| Impact on Corporate Priorities | It is not expected that the recommendations will by themselves materially affect achievement of corporate priorities. However, they will support the Council's overall achievement of its aims as set out in section 3.   | Rob Jarman,<br>Head of<br>Planning and<br>Development                             |
| Risk Management                | Risks are already covered in the risk section 4.  | Rob Jarman,<br>Head of<br>Planning and<br>Development                             |
| Financial                      | The proposal set out in the recommendation is within already approved budgetary headings, so there is no requirement for new funding for implementation.  | [Section 151<br>Officer &<br>Finance<br>Team]                                     |
| Staffing                       | The recommendations can be delivered with current staffing levels.  | Rob Jarman,<br>Head of<br>Planning and<br>Development                             |
| Legal                          | A statement of community involvement sets out an LPA's policy for consultation and engagement, both in the preparation and revision of local development documents and in dealing with planning applications (section 18(2), Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004). SPS&T is the appropriate Committee | Russell<br>Fitzpatrick,<br>Lawyer<br>(Planning),<br>Mid Kent<br>Legal<br>Services |
| Privacy and Data<br>Protection | Accepting the recommendations will increase the volume of data held by the Council. We will hold that data in line with the General Data Protection   | Cheryl Parks,<br>Legal Officer<br>(Planning),<br>Mid Kent<br>Legal                |

|                    | Regulations and locally adopted policies.  | Services  |
|--------------------|--|---|
| Equalities         | The recommendations do not propose a change in service therefore will not require an equalities impact assessment.             | [Policy &<br>Information<br>Manager]                  |
| Crime and Disorder | There are no specific implications for a negative impact on crime and disorder arising from the recommendation in this report. | Rob Jarman,<br>Head of<br>Planning and<br>Development |
| Procurement        | Undertaking public consultation as recommended does not require the procurement of any services, expertise or materials.       | Rob Jarman,<br>Head of<br>Planning and<br>Development |

## 8. REPORT APPENDICES

The following documents are to be published with this report and form part of the report:

• Appendix 1: Draft Statement of Community Involvement 2018

## 9. BACKGROUND PAPERS

There are no background papers.

# APPENDIX 1: Draft Statement of Community Involvement 2018

### Contents:

- 1. Introduction
  - What is the Statement of Community Involvement?
  - Community involvement in planning
- 2. The Council's commitment to community engagement
  - Community involvement
  - The Duty to Cooperate and Statements of Common Ground
- 3. How does the plan making process work?
  - Keeping communities informed during plan making
  - Local Plans
  - Supplementary Planning Documents
  - Neighbourhood Development Plans
- 4. How does the development management process work?
  - Permitted development rights
  - Pre-application advice and consultation
  - Planning applications
  - Planning appeals
  - Planning enforcement
  - Community involvement in planning applications

What is the Statement of Community Involvement?

Appendix 1: Glossary Appendix 2: Website links

## Introduction

1. Local planning authorities are required to prepare a Statement of Community Involvement (SCI) under the <u>Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004</u> (as amended), and to review them every five years as a minimum. The SCI 2018 replaces the Statement of Community Involvement 2013 and is

effective from xxx.

- 2. This Statement of Community Involvement reflects revisions to planning legislation that have occurred since 2013 and changes in the way in which the Council provides its planning services.
- 3. The Maidstone Development Plan includes adopted planning policy documents known as development plan documents. These include:
  - Local plans that are prepared by borough and county councils1, and
  - Neighbourhood development plans that are prepared by parish councils and neighbourhood forums.
- 4. Planning applications are decided in accordance with the Maidstone Development Plan unless other material considerations indicate otherwise. The Council also prepares supplementary planning documents which expand

\_

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> Kent County Council prepares the Minerals and Waste Local Plan

on local plan policies in more detail and provide additional information and guidance.

## **Community involvement in planning**

- 5. The SCI sets out when and how stakeholders and the local community can:
  - Get involved in the preparation of local plans<sup>2</sup>, neighbourhood development plans and supplementary planning documents; and
  - Be involved in the process of decision making on planning applications.
- 6. People can submit comments on documents and planning applications either online, by email or by letter. Individuals, businesses and other groups must provide a name and address for their comments to be valid, and any comments received are treated as a public document and are made public. Personal data held on the Council's databases are subject to the prevailing data protection regulations that exist at the time.
- 7. The Council recognises that early and ongoing consultation and engagement with the local community, the development industry and infrastructure providers is an essential part of the planning processes. To achieve inclusive and effective consultation through the plan making and development management processes, the Council will endeavour to:
  - Provide early opportunities for people to be involved in shaping planning policy;
  - Continue to use new technology that provides easy access to consultations and notifications of development plan documents, supplementary planning documents and planning applications;
  - Provide the information needed for the public and statutory consultees to input to consultations in an informed manner;
  - Ensure communications are clear, contain relevant information and are timely;
  - Manage expectations of the planning system and the level of influence that individuals can have; and
  - Engage with the community in a way that encourages participation.

## The Council's commitment to community engagement

.

8. The community can be involved in all areas of the planning processes, including the preparation and examination of development plan documents, the preparation of supplementary planning documents, and the consideration of planning applications.

9. When preparing development plan documents and supplementary planning documents, the Council maintains an up-to-date consultation database so that those who would like to be informed of the progress of documents are directly consulted at the important stages of consultation. Draft development plan documents may be sent for comments to the specific and general

 $<sup>^2</sup>$  Kent County Council is responsible for consultation undertaken on its local plans, and these are not covered by this Statement of Community Involvement

consultation bodies listed in <u>The Town and Country Planning (Planning)</u> (England) Regulations 2012 (as amended) and <u>The Neighbourhood Planning (General)</u> Regulations 2012 (as amended). These regulations require the Council, as the local planning authority, to decide which of these stakeholders might be appropriate to consult during the consultation period and for their views to be taken into account.

10.In accordance with this SCI, when notifying the community about the receipt of planning applications, the Council will ensure there is appropriate publicity to enable the public to comment on proposals. The list of key stakeholders to whom planning applications may be sent for comments is set out in <a href="The Town and Country Planning">The Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure)</a> (England)
<a href="Order 2015">Order 2015</a> (as amended). Applications for listed building consent or conservation area consent are governed by <a href="The Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Regulations 1990">1990</a> (as amended). These regulations require the Council, as the Local Planning Authority, to decide which of these might be the appropriate bodies to consult during the consultation period and for their views to be taken into account.

## **Community involvement**

- 11. There are many individuals and groups in the local community who will be given the opportunity to be involved in the preparation of plans and to comment on planning applications in accordance with this SCI. In addition to the general public and statutory consultees, who include parish councils and neighbourhood forums, the Council will consult and/or notify hard-to-reach groups and local stakeholder groups where appropriate and relevant, such as:
  - Amenity and local resident groups
  - Businesses and local employers
  - Housing associations
  - Schools and colleges
  - Landowners, developers and planning agents
  - Gypsy and Traveller communities
  - Travelling Showpeople
  - · Local cultural, sport and recreation groups
  - Local nature conservation organisations
  - Local countryside management organisations.

## The duty to cooperate and statements of common ground

- 12. The Localism Act 2011 introduced the 'duty to cooperate'. Neighbouring authorities and other relevant organisations are required to work together on strategic planning issues that cross boundaries and affect their areas. The Council will make sure that it fulfils its legal requirements, and will prepare 'statements of common ground' with:
  - Ashford Borough Council
  - Kent County Council
  - Medway Council
  - Swale Borough Council

- Tonbridge & Malling Borough Council
- Tunbridge Wells Borough Council.
- 13. The progress of 'strategic cross-boundary' matters being addressed will be included in the statements, and statements that are prepared by Maidstone Borough Council for its planning policies will be available on its website. The Council will consider preparing other statements of common ground with additional authorities, including those prescribed in legislation, as necessary. This is based on individual merit.
- 14. The Council also takes part in regular discussions as part of these forums:
  - Kent Planning Officers Group (KPOG)
  - Kent Planning Policy Forum (PPF)
  - Maidstone Borough Council Developers' meetings.

## How does the plan making process work?

- 15. The Strategic Planning team is responsible for the preparation of the Council's local plans and supplementary planning documents. Parish councils and neighbourhood forums prepare neighbourhood development plans for their designated neighbourhood areas.
- 16.The Strategic Planning team makes recommendations to the Strategic Planning, Sustainability and Transportation Committee for all three types of plans. An essential part of the planning process is effective involvement and communication with all parts of the community. How much consultation and the type of consultation will differ depending on the type of document and the stage reached in the planning process.
- 17. The **Local Development Scheme** is a project plan which sets out the timetable for the production of Maidstone Borough Council's local plans, so that communities know when they can participate in public consultations. When a scheme is published, a notice will be displayed on the Council's website and a public notice will appear in a local newspaper.
- 18. The **Authority Monitoring Report** for Maidstone provides a framework with which to monitor and review the effectiveness of planning policies. The reports are updated annually and published on the website.
- 19. Where required as part of the plan making process, **strategic environmental assessments** (SEA), **sustainability appraisals** (SA) and **habitat regulations assessments** (HRA) are prepared to support
  development plan documents. If an assessment is required to support a
  neighbourhood plan, then its preparation is the responsibility of the parish
  council or neighbourhood forum. The community can comment on an
  SEA/SA/HRA during the public consultation stages for development plan
  documents.

(insert diagram)

## **Keeping communities informed during plan making**

- 20. The Council actively uses a number of ways to help keep everyone informed throughout the stages of plan making. How much consultation and the different ways the Council chooses to stay in touch depends on the type of plan and its consultation stage. These methods may include, but are not limited to:
  - The Council's website Consultation activities will be publicised on the Council's website, and planning documents and, as appropriate, background studies will be available for viewing and downloading
  - The consultation portal The consultation portal will be available for people to read and comment on the consultation documents
  - Inspection points Documents and notifications will be made available for viewing at the Council's offices and at local libraries during consultation periods
  - Emails/Letters Notifications will be sent to statutory bodies, stakeholders, and other relevant groups, individuals and organisations on the Council's consultation database (naturally this will be subject to the prevailing data protection regulations that exist at the time)
  - Local newspapers Consultations will be publicised in the local press through public notices and/or press releases
  - Public exhibitions and/or roadshows Larger consultation events may be promoted through public exhibitions or roadshows, to target members of the community who may not get involved through more formal methods
  - Stakeholder meetings and/or workshops Early consultation with stakeholders may be best served through focus group meetings or workshops, depending on the type of plan being produced and the plan preparation stage
  - Borough Insight There may be opportunities for the inclusion of articles in the Council's information magazine, which is delivered to all homes throughout the borough three times a year
  - Questionnaires These may be available on the Council's website, at consultation events, and on request, and completed questionnaires can be submitted as valid representations
  - Community and residents groups Established community and resident groups may be used to target people with particular local interests
  - Facebook and Twitter Consultations may be advertised on the Council's corporate Facebook and Twitter pages to explain how the community can get involved in the consultation.
- 21. Ward Councillors play a very important role at Committee meetings where they can represent the views of their local communities, as well as providing good knowledge of their areas. They are also vital in helping to engage with local communities during the consultation process.

## **Local Plans**

22. The Maidstone Borough Local Plan sets out policies and proposals for development and the use of land and buildings within the authority's area. This is the Council's main planning policy document.

- 23. Any local plan is required to be reviewed every five years. It is subject to two rounds of mandatory public consultation and an independent examination before it can be adopted and becomes part of the Maidstone Development Plan. When a draft local plan is submitted for examination it is accompanied by a set of supporting documents, including a consultation statement detailing what consultation has been carried out and how the representations made have informed the plan's preparation.
- 24. Community involvement is continuous throughout the plan making process, although there are individual stages of prescribed public consultation as part of the process. The stages of local plan preparation are set out in Table 1, which summarises the consultation methods that are to be undertaken at each stage.
- 25. There is no legal consultation period for the preparation stage of plan production (known as Regulation 18). There is a distinct difference between ongoing informal consultations with stakeholders and formal engagement with the wider public. The earlier stages of plan preparation may involve consultation on draft policies or potential site allocations with groups of stakeholders, such as parish councils, neighbourhood forums or infrastructure providers. A pre-submission local plan (known as Regulation 19 stage) will require wider engagement, and the Council will undertake a 6-week consultation with the community. The extent of further consultation on a pre-submission plan that has already been the subject of 6 weeks public consultation, and the period of any further consultation, will be at the discretion of the Council.
- 26. During public consultations on local plans, the Council receives hundreds of representations that raise a wide range of issues. The Council will acknowledge receipt of all representations but will not respond to individual submissions.
- 27.A summary of the main issues raised by respondents, together with recommendations, will be reported to the Strategic Planning, Sustainability and Transportation Committee. The public can view and download Committee reports and decisions from the Council's website. Representations received during the early stages of plan production (Regulation 18) can help to shape and refine the local plan before the statutory 6-week consultation on the pre-submission version of the plan (Regulation 19) is undertaken. Representations made during this latter stage are given consideration by the Inspector during the examination into the plan.

| Local Plan<br>Production Stage  | Engagement and Consultation Methods   |
|---|---|
| Evidence gathering and the early stages of local plan preparation (Regulation 18) | <ul> <li>Preparing the evidence base</li> <li>Ongoing engagement with relevant stakeholders and specialist groups</li> <li>Publication of documents and information on the website</li> </ul> |
|   | <ul><li><u>Undertaking calls for sites</u>:</li><li>Publication of information on the website</li></ul>   |

|   | <ul> <li>Notify statutory bodies, stakeholders and everyone on the consultation database</li> <li>Public notice placed in the local newspaper</li> <li>Use of questionnaires</li> </ul>  |
|---|--|
|   | <ul> <li>Voluntary public consultation on a Scoping Paper and/or a draft local plan</li> <li>Minimum 6-week voluntary public consultation</li> <li>Publication of information on the website</li> <li>Use of the consultation portal for submission of comments</li> <li>Material placed at inspection points</li> <li>Notify statutory bodies, stakeholders and everyone on the consultation database</li> <li>Public notice placed in the local newspaper</li> <li>Use of Facebook and Twitter</li> <li>And may additionally use:</li> </ul> |
|   | Questionnaires   |
| 5.10  | Public exhibitions and/or roadshows  |
| Public consultation<br>on a pre-submission<br>local plan<br>(Regulation 19)   | <ul> <li>Minimum 6-week statutory public consultation:</li> <li>Publication of information on the website</li> <li>Use of the consultation portal for submission of comments</li> <li>Material placed at inspection points</li> <li>Notify statutory bodies, stakeholders and everyone on the consultation database</li> <li>Public notice placed in the local newspaper</li> <li>Use of Facebook and Twitter</li> </ul>   |
|   | And may additionally use:  |
|   | Questionnaires   |
| Submission and independent examination of a local plan (Regulations 22 to 25) | <ul> <li>Notifications of the submission and examination of a local plan:</li> <li>Publication of information on the website</li> <li>Material placed at inspection points</li> <li>Notify statutory bodies, stakeholders and everyone on the consultation database</li> <li>Public notice placed in the local newspaper</li> <li>Use of Facebook and Twitter</li> </ul>   |
|   | <ul> <li>Notification of the receipt of the Inspector's Report:</li> <li>Publication of information on the website</li> <li>Material placed at inspection points</li> <li>Notify statutory bodies and those persons who requested to be notified of the publication of the Inspector's Report</li> </ul>   |
| Adoption of a local<br>plan<br>(Regulation 26)                                | <ul> <li>Notification of the adoption of the Local Plan:</li> <li>Publication of information on the website</li> <li>Material placed at inspection points</li> <li>Notify statutory bodies, stakeholders and everyone on the consultation database</li> <li>Public notice placed in the local newspaper</li> <li>Use of Facebook and Twitter</li> </ul>  |

Table 1: Engagement and consultation methods for Local Plans

## **Supplementary Planning Documents**

28. Supplementary planning documents (SPD) expand on policies in local plans, and they can be site specific or topic based. An SPD is required to be reviewed every five years, and its preparation is governed by planning regulations and informed by community involvement. SPDs are not subject

to independent examination, but a consultation statement is to be prepared before an SPD can be adopted. The consultation statement includes details of who has been consulted, the key matters raised by respondents, and how the issues have been addressed by the Council. The Council will acknowledge receipt of all representations, but will not respond to individual submissions. Table 2 sets out a summary of the consultation methods that the Council uses when consulting on a supplementary planning document.

| Supplementary<br>Planning Document<br>Production Stage | Engagement and Consultation Methods   |
|--|---|
| Preparation of a supplementary planning document       | Ongoing engagement with relevant stakeholders and specialist groups             |
| Public consultation                                    | Minimum 4-week statutory public consultation:                                   |
| on a supplementary                                     | Publication of information on the website                                       |
| planning document                                      | Use of the consultation portal for submission of comments                       |
| (Regulation 12)  | Material placed at inspection points  |
|  | Notify statutory bodies, stakeholders and everyone on the consultation database |
|  | <ul> <li>Public notice placed in the local newspaper</li> </ul>                 |
|  | Facebook and Twitter  |
|  | And may additionally use:   |
|  | Questionnaires  |
| Adoption of a  | Notification of adoption:   |
| supplementary  | Publication of information on the website                                       |
| planning document                                      | Notify statutory bodies, stakeholders and everyone on the                       |
| (Regulation 14)  | consultation database   |
|  | Public notice placed in the local newspaper                                     |
|  | Facebook and Twitter  |

Table 2: Engagement and consultation methods for Supplementary Planning Documents

## **Neighbourhood Development Plans**

- 29.Parish councils and designated neighbourhood forums can prepare neighbourhood development plans, also known as neighbourhood plans, for their designated neighbourhood areas. Neighbourhood plans are required to conform to national policy and be in in general conformity with the strategic policies of the local plan. All neighbourhood plans go through two rounds of mandatory public consultation in addition to an independent examination and local referendum before being 'made' (adopted) by Maidstone Borough Council. A post-examination neighbourhood plan (as modified by the Examiner) is a material consideration in decisions on planning applications and, once made, a neighbourhood plan forms part of the Maidstone Development Plan.
- 30. Consultation and community engagement during the early stages of the preparation of neighbourhood plans is the responsibility of the parish councils or neighbourhood forums preparing a plan for their areas. Following the formal submission of a neighbourhood plan to the Council, the Council is responsible for undertaking a 6-week consultation and for arranging the

independent examination and local referendum. Representations made during the statutory 6-week consultation period are given consideration by the independent Examiner during the examination into the neighbourhood plan.

- 31.During public consultation on a submission draft neighbourhood plan, arranged by the Borough Council, the Council will acknowledge receipt of all representations but cannot respond to individual submissions which will be considered by the Examiner. At this stage the Strategic Planning, Sustainability and Transportation Committee will approve any further representations on the submission draft plan.
- 32.Although there is a clear separation of roles for the various stages of plan preparation, local planning authorities have a duty to support the production of neighbourhood plans. The Council will provide a named contact officer(s) for neighbourhood planning enquiries, and offer the following advice and assistance to qualifying bodies preparing or modifying neighbourhood plan.
- 33. The Council's Strategic Planning team will endeavour to:
  - Explain the different stages involved with neighbourhood planning;
  - Direct qualifying bodies to relevant information;
  - Highlight potential issues around compliance with the Maidstone Borough Local Plan and national planning policy;
  - Provide feedback in the form of comments on draft neighbourhood plans at statutory consultation stages;
  - Carry out a screening exercise of a draft plan to establish whether a strategic environmental assessment and/or a habitats regulations assessment is required;
  - Assess the neighbourhood plan's compliance with statutory requirements following submission of the plan;
  - Undertake public consultation for a minimum 6-week period on the submitted neighbourhood plan;
  - Arrange the appointment of a neighbourhood plan Examiner and make arrangements for the examination; and
  - Make arrangements for referendum and, if approved, make (adopt) the neighbourhood plan.
- 34.Additionally the Council publishes advice notes on its website, which include guidance on neighbourhood planning together with information on external support and funding. The Council's neighbourhood planning protocol sets out the consultation stages and decision process in more detail. The protocol is approved by the Strategic Planning, Sustainability and Transportation Committee.
- 35.One of the main supporting documents accompanying a neighbourhood plan at submission is a consultation statement. This is prepared by the parish council or neighbourhood forum, and includes details the consultation that has been undertaken. It also explains how the representations made have shaped the plan's preparation. Table 3 explains who is responsible for consultation events, and sets out a summary of the consultation methods that the Council uses at each stage it is responsible for.

| Key: MBC - Maidstone Borough Council; PC - Parish Council; NF - Neighbourhood Forum;<br>SEA - Strategic Environmental Assessment; HRA - Habitats Regulations Assessment   |                    |  |
|---|--------------------|--|
| Neighbourhood<br>Development Plan<br>Production Stage   | Responsi<br>bility | Engagement and Consultation Methods  |
| Designating a neighbourhood area which encompasses the whole area of a parish <sup>3</sup> (Regulations 5/5A/7) Designating a   | MBC<br>MBC         | Following designation of a neighbourhood area that encompasses a parish:  Publication of information on the website  Notify local and neighbouring ward Councillors, parish councils and neighbourhood forums  Public notice placed in the local newspaper.  Minimum 6-week statutory public consultation:   |
| neighbourhood area where it does not encompass the whole area of a parish; and designation of a neighbourhood forum (Regulations 5, 6, 6A and 7; and Regulations 8 to 10) | PC or NF           | <ul> <li>Publication of information on the website</li> <li>Notify local and neighbouring ward Councillors, parish councils and neighbourhood forums</li> <li>Public notice placed in the local newspaper</li> <li>Following designation of a neighbourhood area or neighbourhood forum (within 13 weeks of the commencement of statutory consultation):</li> <li>Publication of information on the website</li> <li>Notify local and neighbouring ward Councillors, parish councils and neighbourhood forums</li> <li>Notify those who submitted representations.</li> <li>The PC or proposed NF (usually a Residents Association) is responsible for publishing details on its website and for consultation with the local community.</li> </ul> |
| Public consultation<br>on an initial draft<br>neighbourhood plan<br>(Regulation 14)   | PC or NF           | <ul> <li>The PC or NF is responsible for widespread local consultation at this stage, including engagement with statutory consultees and the local planning authority. The PC or NF must undertake a statutory 6-week consultation period on a draft plan.</li> <li>MBC will submit comments on the initial draft neighbourhood plan</li> <li>MBC will prepare a Screening Report on the need (or otherwise) for an SEA/HRA to support the draft plan, and will seek the views of Natural England, Historic England and the Environment Agency. These bodies have a statutory 5 weeks to respond.</li> </ul>   |
| Submission of a draft<br>neighbourhood plan<br>to the local authority<br>(Regulation 15)  | МВС                | Following receipt of the submission draft neighbourhood plan from the PC or NF, MBC will update the Screening Report to reflect amendments, and will re-consult Natural England, Historic England and the Environment Agency on the need (or otherwise) for an SEA/HRA. These bodies have a statutory 5 weeks to respond.  |
| Public consultation on a submission draft neighbourhood plan  | МВС                | <ul> <li>Minimum 6-week statutory public consultation:</li> <li>Publication of information on the website</li> <li>Use of the consultation portal for submission of comments</li> </ul>  |

\_

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>3</sup> Public consultation is not required in cases where the application to designate a neighbourhood area is made by a parish council and the neighbourhood area encompasses the whole area of a parish

| (Regulation 16)   |          | Material placed at inspection points  |
|---|----------|---|
| (Regulation 10)   |          | <ul> <li>Notify statutory bodies, stakeholders and everyone on the consultation database</li> <li>Notify the local and neighbouring ward Councillors, parish councils and neighbourhood forums</li> <li>Public notice placed in the local newspaper.</li> </ul> As a consultee: <ul> <li>MBC will submit comments on the submission draft neighbourhood plan</li> </ul>   |
|   | PC or NF | The PC or NF is responsible for publishing details on its website and for consultation with the local community.  |
| Examination of a neighbourhood plan and referendum (Regulations 17 to 18) | MBC      | The Examiner is responsible for considering representations and will issue a report recommending a move to referendum (or otherwise), and may recommend modifications to the plan. The Examiner determines whether a Hearing is necessary and, if so, sets the agenda and decides who will be invited to attend.  MBC will publicise receipt of the Examiner's Report and the Council's decision on whether to move to Referendum:  Publication of information on the website  Notify the PC or NF of MBC's decision  If MBC's decision is to move to Referendum:  Issue ballot papers to those who live in the neighbourhood area covered by the neighbourhood plan. |
| Making a<br>neighbourhood plan<br>(adoption)<br>(Regulations 19 to<br>20) | MBC      | <ul> <li>Decision to adopt following a successful Referendum:</li> <li>Publication of information on the website</li> <li>Notify the PC or NF, together with all those who submitted representations on the draft neighbourhood plan, of the outcome of the Referendum and MBC's decision</li> <li>Public notice placed in the local newspaper</li> </ul>   |

Table 3: Engagement and consultation methods for Neighbourhood Development Plans

## How does the development management process work?

- 36. The Development Management team is responsible for making decisions and recommendations to the Planning Committee on planning applications. Decisions take account of the Maidstone Development Plan and any other material planning considerations.
- 37.Many people get involved with the planning system when they want to make changes to their home, or if they want to make comments on a planning application which may affect their property. It is important to stress that there is a difference between 'consulting' statutory bodies on planning applications and 'notifying' members of the public. The Council expects to receive a response from statutory consultees, whereas involvement is

voluntary for members of the public. The Council is able to take decisions without responses from the public following a 21-day consultation period.

## **Permitted development rights**

38.Certain types of work can be carried out without the need to apply for planning permission. These are called 'permitted development rights', which originate from a general planning permission granted by Parliament through The Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (as amended). The Order sets out the circumstances under which permitted development does, or does not, apply. Permitted development rights apply to many common projects for houses, but do not apply to flats, maisonettes or other buildings. Commercial properties have different permitted development rights to dwellings. Within conservation areas and Areas of Outstanding Natural Beauty, permitted development rights are more restricted. Before some permitted development rights can be used, the developer is required to first obtain 'prior approval' in relation to specified aspects of the development from the local planning authority.

## Pre-application advice and consultation

- 39.The Council offers a pre-application advice service to anyone considering a development proposal. This gives potential applicants an opportunity to identify and resolve any problems. This can help prevent costly and time-consuming changes to schemes later, and can indicate whether the proposal is likely to be granted planning permission or not. The Council offers both written advice and face-to-face advice, depending on the type of proposal. Applicants may also request pre-application advice online, by email or by letter. Further information on how to apply and a list of fees for the service is available on the Council's website.
- 40. For major planning application proposals<sup>4</sup>, the Council encourages applicants to approach the following people or groups:
  - Local ward Councillor(s)
  - Parish council(s) or neighbourhood forum(s)
  - Local community in advance of making a formal planning application.
- 41. Save for its statutory obligations, unless specified otherwise in Table 4, the Council has no additional requirements as regards minor applications.
- 42. This early consultation should be as open as possible, giving a genuine opportunity for the local community to influence the design and form of the development proposed. The extent of consultation depends on the proposal, and would include factors like the scale, location and type of planning application.
- 43. For certain major proposals the Council has introduced <u>planning performance</u> agreements, and will use them where appropriate and where agreement is

.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>4</sup> A residential scheme for 10 or more dwellings or for a site of 0.5 hectare or more; or a commercial scheme of 1,000m<sup>2</sup> of floorspace or for a site of 1 hectare or more

reached with a developer. A planning performance agreement provides a project plan and timetable for the determination of the application. It also makes sure that the Council has the resources necessary to make a timely decision on the application whilst involving Councillors, stakeholders and local communities in the proposal. Agreements should also help with the submission of a high quality application.

- 44.For all proposals, sharing information can help overcome potential objections and may provide the opportunity for improvements to the design and layout of schemes. Applicants may well be required to show what consultation has taken place during the preparation of planning applications.
- 45. Where development briefs are prepared as part of planning applications, the Council advises applicants to consult local parish councils and neighbourhood forums, and the local community.

### Planning applications

- 46. Planning regulations set out the statutory framework for publicity on planning applications. As well as publishing information on the Council's website, regulations require certain specified types of applications to be publicised by way of a site notice, a public notice in local newspapers and, in some cases, by notification to adjoining owners or occupiers. Parish councils and neighbourhood forums are notified of planning applications within their areas.
- 47. The extent of consultation on a planning application, and the range of statutory consultees to be consulted and notifications issued, will vary according to the nature of the application and its location. Representations submitted on a planning application will not be acknowledged but are published on the Council's website.
- 48. There are no statutory requirements to re-consult on an amended planning application. The Council will not re-consult on every amendment proposed. Depending on the nature of the amendments proposed, the Council will assess and decide whether or not to re-consult on the proposed amendments and with whom to consult and carry out the consultation process accordingly. Details of the changes will in any event be published on the website.
- 49.A weekly list of planning applications, help on how to find details of applications and advice on how to comment on a planning application can be found on the Council's website <a href="here">here</a>. Personal data held on the Council's databases will be subject to the prevailing data protection regulations that exist at the time.
- 50. The Council will ensure that it fulfils its statutory duties regarding decisions on planning applications. Planning applications are decided by the Planning Committee or by the Development Management team under the local authority's constitutional scheme of delegated powers. With exceptions, Planning Committee meetings are open to the public so anyone can attend and listen to the debate. The applicant and the public may have an

opportunity to speak at Planning Committee through prior arrangement with the Council's Democratic Services team and in line with the Council's constitution. It is not possible for all applications to be determined by Planning Committee due to the volume of applications received, so planning legislation permits the delegation of decisions on certain planning applications to Council officers. Reports on individual planning applications are prepared for the Planning Committee and for delegated decisions by the Development Management team. Reports and decisions on planning applications are published on the website.

51. The statutory time limit for the Council to determine most applications is 8 weeks, whilst with major planning application proposals it is 13 weeks, or 16 weeks if the application is subject to an Environmental Impact Assessment. On large major planning application proposals, the timescales may be increased under a planning performance agreement, where one exists. Once a decision on an application has been reached by the Development Management team or the Planning Committee, the decision notice is sent to the applicant and a copy is published on the website together with all other relevant documents.

## Planning appeals

- 52.Applicants have the right to appeal against a refusal of a planning application or against any conditions imposed by the Council, or if the Council does not make a decision on an application within the statutory time frame. There are no provisions for third parties, including objectors, to appeal against a decision. The statutory requirements for appeals are set out in planning regulations according to the type of planning application that is the subject of an appeal.
- 53. The appeals process is managed by the Planning Inspectorate in accordance with their published procedural guidelines. An appeal may be determined by written representations or an informal hearing or a public inquiry. Appeals determined by written representations involve an exchange of statements and may include a site visit by the Inspector. Informal hearings are a discussion between the person appealing and the Council about the merits of an application and are chaired by an Inspector. Public inquiries are more formal and are often used for major planning application proposals.

## **Planning enforcement**

- 54.Local planning authorities have the power to take enforcement action against inappropriate development or breach of planning conditions where appropriate, having regard to the Maidstone Development Plan, the Enforcement Policy/Local Enforcement Plan, and any other material considerations. The Council will attempt to negotiate a solution first but, should this not be possible, formal enforcement action may be taken. Action may be taken by the issuing of:
  - An enforcement notice

- A stop notice
- A temporary stop notice
- A breach of condition notice.

In the most serious of cases, an injunction may be served.

55.It is a criminal offence on summary conviction to breach a formal notice, but an appeal against the notice can be made to the Planning Inspectorate before the notice takes effect. The Planning Inspectorate will decide on the appeal and has the power to grant planning permission for all or part of the development.

## **Community involvement in planning applications**

56. Table 4 sets out how the Council agrees to engage with communities and statutory through the development management process.

| Planning<br>Application<br>Stage                                | Notification and Consultation Methods  |
|---|--|
| Prior approval notifications under permitted development rights | <ul> <li>Where a prior approval is sought under permitted development rights:</li> <li>Publish details of the prior approval notification on the website</li> <li>And, as appropriate, may additionally:</li> <li>Display site notice(s) on or near the notification site</li> <li>Notify adjoining owners or occupiers</li> <li>Inform relevant statutory consultees, including parish councils and neighbourhood forums</li> </ul>   |
| Pre-application consultations                                   | All applicants are encouraged to consult with adjoining owners or occupiers prior to submitting a planning application. For major schemes, it is advisable for applicants to consult with the wider community, stakeholders (including local ward Members) and statutory bodies prior to the submission of an application.   |
| Receipt of planning applications                                | <ul> <li>Minimum 21-day period to submit representations on a planning application:</li> <li>Publish details of the planning application on the website</li> <li>Public notice placed in the local newspaper advertising all major planning applications, and planning applications that affect a listed building, conservation area, public footpath, or is not in accordance with the adopted Maidstone Development Plan</li> <li>Display site notice(s) on or near the application site</li> <li>Notify adjoining owners or occupiers</li> <li>Inform relevant statutory consultees, including parish councils and neighbourhood forums</li> <li>Publish a weekly list of planning applications on the website</li> </ul> |
| Amendments to planning  | All amendments to planning applications will be published on the Council's website   |

| applications             | Depending on the nature of the amendments proposed the Council will assess and decide whether or not to re-consult on the proposed amendments and with whom to consult and carry out the consultation process accordingly. This may include:  • Re-notify adjoining owners or occupiers  • Notify those who made representations on the original planning application  • Inform relevant statutory consultees, including parish councils and neighbourhood forums  • Display amended site notice(s) on or near the application site |
|--------------------------|---|
| Decisions on             | <ul> <li>Publish planning application decisions made by Planning</li> </ul>   |
| planning<br>applications | Committee or by the Development Management team (under the local authority's scheme of delegated powers) on the website   |
|                          | <ul> <li>Send a decision notice to the applicant</li> </ul>   |
| Applications for         | Minimum 21-day period to submit representations on an   |
| works to                 | application for works to protected trees  |
| protected trees          | <ul> <li>Publish details of the application on the website</li> </ul>   |
| and trees in a           | <ul> <li>Notify adjoining owners or occupiers</li> </ul>  |
| conservation             | Inform relevant parish councils and neighbourhood forums  |
| area                     | Publish in the weekly list of planning applications on the  |
|                          | website   |
|                          | <ul> <li>Display site notices on or near the application site if the<br/>works are on Council-owned land</li> </ul>   |
|                          | works are on council-owned land   |
|                          | Minimum 14-day period to submit representations on a  |
|                          | notification for works to trees in conservation areas   |
|                          | Publish details of the application on the website   |
|                          | Publish in the weekly list of planning applications on the  |
|                          | website   |
| Planning appeals         | The Inspector decides whether an application is to be considered by written representations or by an informal hearing/public inquiry. Further representations can be submitted to the Planning Inspectorate, but the Inspector presiding over a hearing/inquiry decides who is allowed to speak.  |
|                          | <ul> <li>If the appeal is to be dealt with by written representations</li> <li>Publish details of the planning appeal on the website</li> <li>Re-notify all relevant consultees and those who made comments on the original planning application</li> </ul>   |
|                          | <ul> <li>If the appeal is to be heard by hearing or public inquiry</li> <li>Publish details of the planning appeal on the website</li> <li>Re-notify all relevant consultees and those who made representations on the original planning application and include information on the hearing/inquiry</li> <li>Re-notify the relevant parish council and/or neighbourhood forum, ward councillors, witnesses, objectors and adjoining owners or occupiers and include</li> </ul>  |

|                               | details of the hearing/inquiry  |
|-------------------------------|---|
| Decisions on planning appeals | The Planning Inspectorate is responsible for notifying relevant parties of the appeal decision. When the Planning Inspectorate makes its decision, the decision is published online and can be viewed using their search facility. The Council will likewise publish the planning appeal decision on its website. |

Table 4: Notification and consultation methods for planning applications

## **Appendix 1: Glossary**

**Authority monitoring report** – The Maidstone Monitoring Report is prepared annually and provides a framework with which to monitor and review the effectiveness of Maidstone Borough Local Plan policies.

**Appeal** – The process by which a planning applicant can challenge an adverse decision. The appeals process is managed by the Planning Inspectorate. The appeal may be conducted in writing, or by an informal hearing led by an Inspector, or by a formal public inquiry with cross-examination of witnesses. **Development Plan** – The Development Plan includes adopted local plans and neighbourhood plans. Decisions on planning applications should follow the Development Plan unless other relevant planning factors indicate otherwise. **Development plan document (DPD)** – A DPD is a spatial planning document that is subject to independent examination. DPDs include local plans and neighbourhood plans and, once adopted, they become part of the Development Plan.

**Hard to reach groups** - Groups of people who are traditionally more difficult to target during consultation exercises, for example, older people, Gypsy and Traveller communities, and people with a disability.

**Independent examination** - an interrogatory process led by one or more members of the Planning Inspectorate, held to examine the soundness of a local plan.

**Informal Hearing** - A planning appeal hearing undertaken in a structured way and chaired by a Planning Inspector, but without the formality of a public inquiry.

**Local development scheme (LDS)** - The LDS is a project plan which sets out the timetable for the production of Maidstone Borough Council's local plans, so that communities know when they can participate in public consultations.

**Local plan** – The Maidstone Borough Local Plan is the core document that sets the framework to guide the future development of the borough. It plans for homes, jobs, shopping, leisure and the environment, as well as the associated infrastructure to support new development. It explains the 'why, what, where, when and how' development will be delivered through a strategy that plans for growth and regeneration whilst at the same time protects and enhances the borough's natural and built assets.

**Major proposal** - A residential scheme for 10 or more dwellings or for a site of 0.5 hectare or more; or a commercial scheme of 1,000m<sup>2</sup> of floorspace or for a site of 1 hectare or more.

**Material consideration** - A matter that should be taken into account in deciding a planning application, such as overlooking/loss of privacy, parking, noise, etc. Issues such as loss of view, or negative effect on the value of properties are not material considerations.

**Neighbourhood area** – A neighbourhood area is an area designated for the purpose of preparing a neighbourhood development plan.

**Neighbourhood development plan (NDP)** – NDPs, which are also called neighbourhood plans, were introduced under the provisions of the Localism Act 2011. Parish councils or neighbourhood forums are able to prepare statutory development plan documents which, once 'made' (adopted) form part of the Maidstone Development Plan.

**Neighbourhood forum** - A designated neighbourhood forum is an organisation or group, often a Residents Association, empowered to lead the neighbourhood

planning process in a neighbourhood area where there is no parish council. A group or organisation must apply to the local planning authority to be designated as a neighbourhood forum.

**Planning inspectorate (PINS)** - The Planning Inspectorate is responsible for processing planning and enforcement appeals and conducts examinations into local plans.

**Public inquiry** - An independent inquiry carried out by the Planning Inspectorate assessing planning decisions made by the local planning authority, which allows applicants the right to appeal against the refusal of planning permission/ consent/ enforcement proceedings. The inspector produces a decision after hearing evidence in person.

**Representation** – The formal submission of comments on a plan during public consultation or on a planning application following notification and publicity. **Stakeholder** - An individual or organisation that has specific knowledge and/or expertise of the subject matter.

**Statement of community involvement (SCI)** - A document that sets out how/when communities can be involved in the preparation of plans and the determination of planning applications.

**Supplementary planning document (SPD)** – An SPD provides additional information and guidance in support of policies in local plans. The community is involved in their preparation, but there is no independent examination of the document.

## **Appendix 2: Website links**

Below is a list of useful links to some planning procedural legislation and policy (and guidance) documents.

## Legislation

The Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012 (as amended) <a href="http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/767/contents/made">http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/767/contents/made</a>

The Neighbourhood Planning (General) Regulations 2012 (as amended) http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/637/contents/made

The Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015 (as amended) <a href="https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2015/595/contents/made">https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2015/595/contents/made</a>

The Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (as amended)

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2015/596/contents/made

The Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Regulations 1990 (as amended)

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/1990/1519/regulation/1/made

#### National policy and guidance

National Planning Policy Framework and Planning Practice Guidance <a href="https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-planning-policy-framework--2">https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-planning-policy-framework--2</a>

https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/planning-practice-guidance

Draft proposed revisions to the National Planning Policy Framework and Planning Practice Guidance

https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/draft-revised-national-planning-policy-framework

Planning Portal

https://www.planningportal.co.uk/

## **Maidstone Borough Council**

Planning and Building website

http://www.maidstone.gov.uk/home/primary-services/planning-and-building